1888 Captain’s House in Old Town

Everything for Decorating
...Under One Roof.
...At Very Modest Prices

Custom Upholstery

Carpet & vinyl floor covering ¢
Custom drapes & shades
Mini-blinds

Wallpaper

Pease® Hurricane Shutters

Get the Best for Less
in Our Local Workshop

Rowland’s Decorating

1120 S. 8th St. Since 1953 261-5842
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The Bell
Houses

House photos by Gino Litrico

Much of the charm of Fernandina’s
residential architecture is the heritage
left to us by Captain William B. Bell and
Captain James Bell. Nine houses, known
to have been built by them, remain intact
today.

The Bell brothers were river pilots who
came here from North Carolina after the
Civil War. Bornin 1841, they were identi-
cal twins. They looked so much alike -
the local story goes - “they used to swap
their clothes and fool their wives!”

Captain William and Virginia Bell had
two sons and two daughters. Captain
James and Mary Martha Bell lost their
only son at age two.

In the latter part of the 19th century
and the start of the 20th, Fernandina was
such a busy shipping center that pilots
didn’t lack for money. They also had
spare time between jobs, so most pilots
had sideline businesses. The Bells’ side-
line was buying up real estate and build-
ing a succession of homes for them-
selves and occasionally for others. After
their first simple cottages, they utilized
plenty of gingerbread trim - almost as
though they were competing with each
other in the variety and uniqueness of
their architectural decoration.

Like other pilots, the Bells started out
living in Old Town, but the first homes
they built and owned were in downtown
Fernandina - William on a lot purchased
in 1874 on S. 5th a half-block off Centre
and James back-to-back on a lot pur-
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PACKABLE FLORIDA MEMENTOES
“MUST HAVE” KITCHEN GADGETS
BASKETS FOR MANY USES
-« .. AND SO MUCH MORE

Captain William B. Bell Captain James Bell
1841-1915 1841-1903

chased in 1875 on S. 4th. (These homes
stood where the Florida National Bank
drive-in and driveway are located.)

In 1879 James purchased the lot next
door, and the 1% story cottage built in
the 1880s still stands at 20 S. 4th Street.
Known as the Salvador House, it became
the property of the shrimping pioneer,
Mike Salvador, in 1918 and is now the
home of Mrs. Joanna Litrico.

In 1887 James bought a lot facing the
river and the Plazain Old Town (212 Es-
trada). In 1888 he completed his two-
story home (Captain’s House) with a
tower and a hatch out onto the roof, so
the pilot could observe schoonersenter-
ing Cumberland Sound. With sunbursts,
fish-scale, 3-leaf clovers, 4-leaf clovers,
brackets-and-globes, scallops, circles,
diamonds, Maltese crosses and other
decorations, this house has a wider vari-
ety of gingerbread motifs than any other
in Fernandina. The house was pur-
chased by another pilot, Captain Roberts
Downes, in 1903. It was then purchased
by J. W. Decker and in 1964 was slated to
become a museum. Captain’s House is
still undergoing restoration by present
owners, Gino and Helen Litrico.

(Con’t next page)

1904 Lasserre House at 130 S. 7th -

Let us create
your high-
fashion
kitchen.

The choice is
yours. Serving
Amelia Island
Plantation.

=1 1-241-5286

DESIGN CENTER OF
NORTH FLORIDA
424 3rd St. S., Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250

Your store for
Wicker & Rattan Furniture

Dhurrie Rugs and
Fine gifts from around the world
213 Centre Street 261-2350

Exclusively local art
205 Centre Street - 261-7020
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1880s Salvador House at 20 S. 4th

(The Bell Houses Con't.)

About the same time, James built for
W. A. Mahoney the residence on the SW
corner of Cedar and S. 8th (303 S. 8th).
It's said to be modeled after Captain
Bell’s own house in Old Town, but com-
mon sense dictated that the tower be
reduced and theteeny window’s walk be
only symbolic, asthis house is noton the
river. The house has some of the most
delightful gingerbread in town, and it's
beautifully maintained by Mrs. F. D. Mills
and family.

Phoenix Walk is twenty-
two beautiful residences
designed for those who
want carefree resort liv-
ing. These single family
residences will be located
across from the Fernandina
Beach Golf Course’s mag-
nificent clubhouse, and a short walk to a
beach access deck, built with your conven-
ience in mind and offers 2-bedroom /2-
bath, 2-bedroom/2¥%-bath and 3-bedroom
/3-bath residences. Marketing by Paul C.
wcaw wnm_ Estate. Call (904) 261-6111.

Destined to become the
center of Centre Street
Commerce in Fernandina
Beach, Florida, the Cot-
ton Exchange Buildingis
a unique 18-unit condomi-
: nium office, featuring pri-
vate nonnwcon areas, private restroom facil-
ities, private parking, enclosed courtyard
and passenger elevator services. Marketing
by Davis-Phoenix Co., Inc. (904) 261-2818.

“From Sea To Shining Tee’

In 1888 William purchased the IGt on
the NE corner of Beechand S. 8thandin
1889 completed the most elegant of the
Bell houses - now the C House. The bal-
ustrade on the first and second story
porches was inspired by the Chinese
chippendale design in furniture. The
Bells’ daughter, Haidee, and her hus-
band, Sam Kennard, purchased the
house from her parents in 1910. Original
marble fireplaces inside invite a visit to
this fine gift shop owned by the Jack
Cokers.

In 1900 William purchased the lot on
the NW corner of S. 8th and Beech. Tax
records indicate that the corner struc-
ture (now House of Exotic Fish) was
completed by 1903 and the small cottage
next door in 1904. Both structures are
now owned by Larry French.

In 1902 James purchased the lot on
121 N. 3rd Street and built the present
quaint cottage as his home. It was pur-
chased in 1919 by the shrimping pio-
neer, Salvatore Versaggi, but is best
known as the home of our long-time light-
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Rediscover the simplistic
beauty of nature in the
new residential commun-
ity, Windmill Farm. 120
homesteads will be located
on S. Sadler Road in Fer-
nandina Beach, Eolmp,
offering the serenity of pic-
Enommzo Egan’s Creek. Privacy of country
living is in mind with beautiful vistas in an
excellent location, near shopping areas and
schools. Truly ideal family living. Contact
the Davis-Phoenix Co., Inc. (904) 261-2818.

Completely sold out,
Ketch Courtyard ocean-
front condominiums are
now under constructionon
S. Fletcher. Thirty-two
villas feature huge decks
and every convenience.

All developments of
The Davis-Phoenix Co. Inc.
303 Centre St., Fernandina Beach, FL 32034
(904) 261-2818

house keeper, Tom O’Hagan, Sr. It is
now owned by Tom O’Hagan, Jr., and his
sister, Helen Sintes.

James Bell died in 1903, but William
continued to build.

That same year, 1903, William pur-
chased the lot on the NE corner of S. 7th
and Beech (130S. 7th) and in 1904 com-
pleted this residence with some of the
most graceful ornamentation in town. It
was purchased by the automobile dealer,
Charles Lasserre, in 1920, and his son,
Charles, resides there now.

In 1907 William purchased as trustee
for his youngestchild, Howard B., the lot
on the SW corner of Beech and S. 8th
(714 Beech). This final Bell home, par-
tially hidden by greenery, is lavish with
fish-scale and charming frou-frou at the
peaks of the rooflines on the east and
west sides. It is now the home of Mrs.
George S. Lowe.

William Bell died in 1915 and is buried
beside his brother in the Episcopal
cemetery. Their tombstones are identi-
cal, just as the twin brothers were in life.
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Greens fee $6.50 all day

Quality merchandise & friendly service

Off S. Fletcher 261-7804
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REALTOR * 904/261-4066
Highway A1A-Fla. 200
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1902 O’Hagan House at 121 N. 3rd

B&C Tire &
Battery, Inc.

Complete Auto Service
Ryder Truck Rental
Reasonable road service

e B.F. Goodrich,

@ Michelin ® Cooper tires
Mon.-Fri. 7:30-6 Sat. 8-12

Fernandina S. 8th St.
261-3684
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Yulee A1A West

225-5107
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